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September 6, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (Energy) to enter into an amendment to an existing SOLE SOURCE
Contract Agreement with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., (VC #177195), Berlin, NH, by
increasing the price limitation by $794,845 from $4.211,235 to $5,006,080 using additional Low-Income Home
Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds made available through the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs
Act (I1JA) and from remaining regular program year funds, both from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through September 30, 2023. There is no time extension being requested for this contract.

This contract was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on December 8, 2021 (Item #43).
100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available for FY2023 in the following account:

Department of Energy, LIHEAP FUEL ASST

02-052-052-520010-33540000

LIHEAP FUEL ASST FY2023
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $794.845

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract that is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities. NH DOE proposes to continue to
subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided similar services at the local level for
more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the NH DOE Fuel Assistance Program
Administrator in the implementation of several low-income programs.

Through the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (11JA), the Department was awarded $774,475 in additional
Low Income Home Energy Program (LIHEAP) funds, known in New Hampshire as the Fuel Assistance
Program (FAP). In addition, an additional $3,578,451 in regular allocation funding was received for Program



Year 22 (PY22). This amendment adds at total of $4,352.926 in additional funds to the contracts and makes
them available to the Community Action Agencies for the upcoming winter heating season.

This Energy contract provides the Community Action Agency with program funds to support eligible New
Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled citizens who are in need of assistance to
help pay for heating costs during the winter season. LIHEAP/FAP is a federally funded statewide program that
makes home energy more affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and elderly residents of New
Hampshire. Program funds are targeted to low-income households with high energy burdens. Federal law
establishes maximum income guidelines. Energy subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for
providing FAP services at the local level.

In the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be requested to support this program.
Respectfully submitted,

o

Jared Chicoine,
Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated August 25, 2022 is between the State of New Hampshire Department of
Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
“State™) and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc., 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, Coos County,
NH 03570 (hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor™).

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”), as approved by Governor
and Council on December 8th, 2021 (Ttem #43) the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services,
per the terms and conditions spec1ﬁcd in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of
certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be
modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after
approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows:

'A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the
current sum of $4,211,235.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$5,006,080.00.

B) Exhibit C — Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking the current
sum of $4,211,235.00 and inserting in place thercof the total sum of $5,006,080.00.

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of $345,010.00 and
inserting for administrativc costs $424,495.00.

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of $3,083,625.00 and
inserting for program costs $4,398,985.00.

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms
and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full
force and cffect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it
existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

TCCA Amendment Ceontractor Imunlls 5&2&

Grants: 2201 NHLIEA & 2201NHLIEI Date: gl
CFDA: 93.568 Page 1 of 2
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CONTRACT AMENDMENT NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above-

written. -
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Departmeptof Ener,

By: ‘ ; Af/
Fo,( Jared Chicoine, Commidsioner

Tri-County Community' Action Program, Inc.

By: ?w Wa’h\lﬂb

Randall Pilottc Chief Financial Officer

State of New Hampshire

County of ___Coos

~

On this 26" day of __August. 2022, before me, ___Christina Mogn , the undersigned officer,
personally appeared __Randall Pilottc , who acknowledged himself/herself to be the CFO
of Tri-County Community Action sram, Inc., a corporation, and that he/she being authorized so to

do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 hereunto set my hand ayyfﬁc'a seal. O
| 7y "5 oy Strt 0
. O Ny, Y Motar,
Xy,

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission expires: 15116 | Doa ]

Approved as to fonn, execution and substance;

OFFICEOF T, TORNEY GENERAL
By: % % i :

“Assistant Attomey General

2,2022
Date: September

[ hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of
New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2022,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

TCCA Amendment Contractor Inigjgls: Mﬂ
Grants: 2201 NHLIEA & 2201 NHLIEI Datc; ____ é a2 )
CFDA: 93.568 Page 2of2



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

l, Sandy Alonzo , hereby certify that:
{Name of the efected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatary)

1.1am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
{Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vole taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on qu Es bl , 20, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voling.
(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Rebillard, CEO and or Randall Pilolte, CFO___ {may list more than one persan)
{Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc._ to enter into conlracts or agreements

with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documants, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, of modifications theretp, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote. .

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Cerificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood thal the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full aulhority to bind the corporation. To the extenl that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,

all such limitations are expressly stated herein. ) .
Dated: 8 abl Qm ¢ /%_llflv'_f,‘é {‘f\ (.y {"'{}'?;'\ﬁ:}/
< Signalure of Elecled Officer  /

Name: Sandy Alohzo
Title: Board Chair

CHRISTINA MORIN, Notary Pubfic ///7 —
State of Mew Hamgpshite =
My Commission Expires Decembar 19, 202 .

Rev. 03/24/20




State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secreiary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hcrEioy centify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit-Corporation registered to transact business in
New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. [ funther certily thal all fees and documents required by the Secrewary of Siate's of¥ice have

been received and is in good standing as far as this ofTice is concerned.

Business 1D:; 63020'
Cestificate Number: 0005774957

*

. INTESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hercto sct my hand and cause to be afMixed
the Seal of the Siate of New Hampshire,
this 10th day of May A.D. 2022,

David M. Scanlan
Seerclary of State
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIREGU2312]. p11 1:51 RCVD) Lf 3 - f“'P

INTERIM COMMISSIONER TOD Access: Ralgy NH

Jarad Chicoine 1-800.735-2084
Tel, {803) 271-3670 -
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FAX No. 271-1526
Christopher J. Elims, Jr :
Webasile:

DEPARTMEHT OF ENERGY vresw.nergy.nih.gav
21 8. Fruit St., Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

" November (6,202

Hts Exocilcncy, Governor Christopher T. Suaunu
and the Honorabile Council |

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Department of Energy (ENERGY) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract
with Tri-County Community Action Program, [nc., (VC #177195), Berlin, NH in the amount of
34,211,235 for the Fuel Assistance Program effcctwc upon Governor and Executive Councul
approval through September 30, 2023.100% Federal Funds,

Funds to support this request are anticipatcd to be available in the following account in FY 2022
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

f Encigy, Fuel Assi . EY 2022
02-52-52-520010-18870000 - : .
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Rclicf ' - $4,211,235.00 -

2) Further requcst authorization to advance Tri- County Community Action Program, Inc.
$43,126.00 from the above refercnccd contract amount.

L_ .

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshnrc Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client
service capabilities, the synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs’

. mplemenmtlon of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is already
in place to deliver FAP services, ENERGY proposes to continue to subcontract with the five
CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the locel levél for more than three
decades. The CAAs work closely with the ENERGY FAP Administrator in the implementation

of' the program,

FAP is a statewide program, fundcd by a Federal Low Income Homc Energy Assistance Program
{LIHEAP) Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified
New Hampshire families, including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. The current maximum income



level is 60% of the State Median Income (SMI), which is $72,493.00 for a family of four: The
average FAP bencfit during the last program year was §1 077 00. ) ;

The LIHEAP program operates on an October 15t to September 30th program year. The contract
amount for each of the Community Action Agencies is based upen Energy’s initial allocation
(90%) of our annuali grant. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless federal monies
are available to be'expended. The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAAto operate the
program between monthly rc:mbursements from the State.

in the event that the Federal Funds become no langer available, Gcneral Funds will not be
requested to support thus program. .

ReSpectfully subm:tted,

Jared Chicoine
Director

"JC/EPS ..

-Enclosures



FORM NUMBER P-37 (vcnion 121 112019)

: DNogice: This ap‘ecmerlund allofiis o luclments s.hlllb:come pubbc upon submission to Oovemor and
Exccutive Council for approval. Any information that is privaic, confidentislor proprietary must
bc clearty dennﬁcd to thcagcncy and lmcd to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually ageas foibw:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

*1. IDENTIFICATION. : : C . ks .
1.1 State Agency Name 12 Siste Agency Address gt

New Hnmplhne Depanimentof Energy 21 So0. Fruit Street, Ste. 10

lConcord. New Hampshire 03301

I 4 Coniractor Address - :

1.3 ContractorName

Tri-Counly Community Action Progmm, Inc. |30 Exchange Sireet, Berdin, NH 03570

1.5 ContractorPhons . | 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Carapktion Dare 78 Prico Limitaton
Number : 02-52-52-5200{0-18870000- .| Scptember30, 2023 $4.211.235.00

{603) 752-7001 . 074.500587 S$2B22A -

1.9 Conimacting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State’Agency TelephoneNumber ™ ° h

Eileen Smiglowski, Fuel Assisiance Program Admmuualor -] (603)271-3607

1.12 Namc aind Titk of Contracior Sisnator;
Jeanne Robiltard, CEQ

Date:y| h‘j\'a\

.13 Slatc Agcncy S:@atum e . o I 14 Nameand Titls of Stale Agency Slgnatory

] xt“‘ﬂo Cks(blﬁf
= \ Date; !//16!2&\ _s..w"teru e C_omwu Sdia e

'/l LS A.ppm\rﬂf'theN.H Depantmentof Mmmmmmn Division of Personnel- (if applicable)

" By: . . Dln:clo:, On:

18 Appr‘ovallby the At ¢y Generol (Form, Subsance and Excculioh)'('faéﬁlicablc) —

R %

1.17 Approvilby the Govemor and Executive Council (ifapphcnblc)

By:

- G&C Nem number: G&C Meeiing Date:

Pni;c'l of 4
) _ Contractor Initials
’ Datc,




2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Statc of Now .

Hampshire, acting through ths agency ientified in block 1.1
(‘Siate’), cogages contractor identificd in blck 1.3
(“Conlrcior”}lo perform, sod the Contractorshall perform, the
work or salke of goads, or both, identified and more particulady
described in the sttached EXHIBIT B which is mcorpornui
hercin by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwilhsiunding eny provision of this Agreement to the
coatrary, and subject Lo the approval of the Govemor and
Executive Council of the State of.New Hampshire,if applicabls,
thig Agreement, and allobligu tions of the pastics hereunder, shull
become effective on the date the Govemnor and Executive
Coungil approve this Agreemen! as indiceted in block 1.17,
unless no such approvaliarequired, in which coscthe Agreement
shal become effective on the date Lhe Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 C'Bffecrive Date™). |
© 3.2 If the Contractor commences ihe Services prior- to the
_Effective Date, all Services perfarmed by the Contractorprior to

the Lffective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the

Contmctor,and in the event that this Agrecment does not become
cffcclive, the Siate shall have po.liability to the Contmctor,
_incloding without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Coniractor for any costs ncurmed or Services performed.

Contractor must complets all Scrvices by the Completion Date

specified i block 1.7. e

" 4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding ony provision of this Agreement 1o the
contrary, a1l chbligations of the State hercunder, including,
withaut limitation, the continunnce of payments hereunder, ore

contingent upon the availability and continued e ppropriation of .

funds affected by any staie or federnl legislative or cxceutive
action that reduces, -climinates or otherwitc maodifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Ap'ccmem and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or i
part. In no event shall the State be lable for any paymens
_hereunder in excess of such availsble nppropriated funds. Inthe
event of a reduction or teeminntion of sppropriated funds, the
_ Srate shall hove the right (o withbold poyment until such funds

become availabl, i ever, and shall bave the right te reduce or
terminote the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving -the Contractar nolice of such reduction or tcrmmation.
The State shali not be required to transler funds from any other
acvounl or source 1o the Account identified in block 1.6 in tho
cveat fundsin that Account arcreduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. :

5.1 The contract peice, method of payment, and (¢rms nfpﬂmdn
are identifigd and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference,

5.2 The payment by the State of the conimet price shall be the
only and the complcte rembursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contrucior in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only snd the complete

Page2 of 4

compensation to the Contrctor for the Services. The State shall
hnvc no lability to the Contmctorotherthan the contrmct price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any smounts
othciwise payablo to the Contraclorunderchis Agreement those
liguidated amounts required or permilicd by N:H. RSA.80:7
through RSA 30:7< orany olhcrpmvunn oflaw.

" 5.4 Notwithsianding any provision in this Agreement to the

contrary, and aotwithstanding uncxpected cicumstances, in no
event shallthe totalofall payments authorized, or actuatly made
hercunder, cxcecd the Price Limitation el forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS! EQUAL EMI’LOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Scmcez the
Contmcter shall comply with all applicable statutes, bws,

" regubstions, and onders of federal, stale, county or municipal

authorities which Enpose any obligntion or duly upon the
Contructor, inctuding, but not limited to, civil rights 'and cqual
em p!oymenl opportunily laws. Inaddition, if this Agreement is
funded in eny part by monics of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with s} federal cxecutive orders, rules, regulbations
and statutes, and with any rules, regubations ond guidelnes a1 the
State or the United States issuc to implement these regulations.
The Conirnsctorshall also comply with all applicable intellectual

" propeny bws,

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contrctor shall not *
discriminate against employces or applicants for employment

* becousoof race, color, religion, crced, age, scx, handicap, sexunl

oricntalion, or nationa lorign and will” lakcafﬁmmweammm
prevent such discrimina rion.

6.3. The Contractoragrees to permit the State or United Smtes
sccessto any ofthe Contractor’s books, recordsand accounts for
the purposc of ascertsining compliance with all rukes, regula tions
and orders, and the cavensnts, terms and condmo:u of this
Agrecment. ;

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractorshallnt its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contracior wamants that
all personncl engaged in the Services shab be qualified to
perfonn the Scrvices, and sholl be propedy licensed and
otherwise nuthorized to do so under al] applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in‘writing. during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six {6) months afier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractorshall not hire, and
shall not p‘ennit any subcontrucior or other person, fomn or
corpomltion with whom it is cogaged in 6 combaned-effon to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is o State employoe
or official, who i matcrially imvolved in the procurcment,
sdministration or perfonnance of this Agreement. This
provision shallaurvive termination of this Agreement,
7.3 The ContractingOfficer specificd in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's represcntative. Inthe cventofany
dispute conceming the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

.

\

-
Contractor Initials J\

Date |1|E [



3. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the lollowing acts or omissions of the
Coniractorshallconstituic an event ofdet‘nuh hereunder (*Event
of Defauh™):

8.1.) failure 10 perform the Scrvices samf’acsonly or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure 1o submit 8 ny mepont required hercunder; and/or

. 8.1.3 faidure to perform any other covenant, term arcondition of
this Agreement. .

8.2 Upon the occumence of any Event of Defnuts, the State may
lakeany onc,or more, orall, af the followmg petions: '

8.2.1 give the Contractora written natice sp:c:fymg the Bventof
Default and requiring it 1o be remedied within, in the absenceof
& greater or kesser gpecification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; snd ithe Eveni of Defauli is not timely cured,
tenninate this Ageement, cffective two (2) daysafier giving the
Contractorpotice of termination; ’

8.2.2 give the Coniractora writien notice specifying the Eventof
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that 1he portion of the conirsct price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice vatdl such time asthe State
determimnes thot the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall neverbe paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contrmctora written notice specifying the Eventof

Defauh and set off against any other obligntions the Stote may °
owg 10 the Contractorany damages the State suffersby reason of -

any Event of Default; and/or
§.2.4 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Eventof

Default, treot the Agreement os breached, terminate the .

Agreement and pursue opy of its emedics at law or in equity, or

« both.
§.3. No failure by thoSmmoenl‘on.clnyprovmomhereofnftu'

any Eventof Default shall be deemed » waiver of its rights with

regard to that Event of Defauk, or any subscquent Event of
Default, No cxpress failure to enforce sny Bvent of Default shal
be deemed a waiver of the right of the Stalcto enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defaulton the psriofthe Contractor.

9. TERMINATION,

9.1 Notwithstanding puragraph 8, the State may, a1 its sole
-discretion, termina te the Agreemen? forany renson. in whole or
in pun, by thity (30) days written notice to the Contracior that
the State is exercising ils option to terminate the Agreement,

9.2 In theevent of an carly termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Scrvices,: the
Conircctor shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver 0 the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15)daysa frerthe dote
of termination, o report (“Termination Repon™) describing in
detai) all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, 10
end including 1he date of iermination. The form, subject mattey,
content, and number of ¢copics of the Termination Report shall
beidentical to those of any Fina{ Report described in the attached
EXHIBITB. Inaddition, st the State s disteetion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 daysof notice of carly termination, develap and

Poge 3 of 4

" submil 1o the Store n Trnsition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shallmeanall
information and things developed or obla ined dusing the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, mchludmg, butnot imited to, all studics, reports,
files, formulae, survcys, maps, chorts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawingy, anatyscs, graphic

' repreacnta Hons, COMPULET Progra mis, cOmputet printouts, notes,

icilcrs, memonnds, papers, and documents, o U whether
finishied or unfinished.

10.2 Al dats andany pmpcny which has bccn received from
the State or purcha sed with fundsprovided foc that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the properly of the State, and
shall bereturmed to the State upon demand orupon Icrmmnllun
of this Agreement forany reazon,

10.3 Confidentiality of data shallbe govemned by N.H. RSA
chapter91-A or other existing iw, Disclosure ofdata requires
pnor wrillen approvalofthe State,

11. CONT RACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In 'I.he

- performiance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects

an independent contmctor, and i neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employces, s gents ormembers shall ho ve authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, worken' compensation or
other emoliments pravided by the State to its cmployces.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.} The Contractor shall not s ssign, or otherwise tranafer any
interest in thiz Agreemenl without the prior written notice, which -
shall bo provided to the Statc at keast filteen {15) doys priot to

" the assignment, snd s wrilicn conseat of the State. For purposes

of this parmgraph, o Change of Control shail constitute
sssignment. "Change- of ContoI" meons (o) merger,

consvlidation, or.o transaction grseres of related transaclionsin
which a third panty, together with its affilistes, becomes the
“direct or indect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voling sharcs or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantis iy all
of the assets of the Conrractor.,

12.2 None of the Services shsll be subcontracied by the
Contraclor without prior writien notice and cunscnl of the Stete.
The Staic b entitlked to copics of a1 subconimcts'and s ssignment
ogreements and shall not be bound by eny provisions contained
in a subcontruci or an assighment a greement 10 which it is nots

pany.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless atherwise exemptedby bw,
the Contractor shill indemnify and hok! harmless the State, ita
officers ond employecs, from and against any ond ¥ U claims,
liabitilies and costs forany personalinjury or properry dsmages,
patentorcopyright infringement, orotherclaims sascricd egaing
the Stale, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be chimed to arise oul of) the acis or ‘omission of the

Contractor Enitials \J\ ;
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the

negfigence, reckless or inlentional conduct. The State sholl not’

be Kable for any costs incumred by the Contrmctor srising under

. this paragraph 13. Nuiwithstanding the foregoing nothing herein-

contained shall be deemed to constitute » waiverof the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved t6 the
Swate. This covenant in paragmph 13 shall survive the
ilermination of this Agreement. ]

14. INSURANCE. .
14.1 The Contraclor shall ot its sole expense, oblain and
continuously maintatn & force, and shall require  any

subconimctoror agsignee 10 obtain and mointsin in force, the

following insurance:

14.5.1 commercial general kability insurance against ail claims
of bodily injury, death or properly damage, in amounts of not
lcas than $1,000,000 per o¢cumcnee and $2,000,000 aggregate
orcxcess; and

14.4.2 specis] cause of Joss coverago fonm covering o)l property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amauntnot Jess than
20% of the whole replocement vakue ofthe property.

14.2 The policics described in subparograph 4.1 hereinshall be
on policy formsand codorsementsapproved forusc in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, ond
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

143 The Contractor shall fumish to the Conimeting Officer
identified in black 1.9, orhis or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insumonce for all msurance required under this Agreement.
Contractorshallalso fumish to the Contracting Officer ddentified
in block |.9, or his or her successor, cenificate(s) of insurunce
forall renewa¥s) of msumnce requited underthis Agrecment ne
later than ten (10) days prior to the expimtion date of each
insurance policy. The cenificale(s) of insurance and any
rencwals thereof shall be attached and are incorpornied herein by,
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this sgreement, the Contraclor grees, ccmﬁcs
and warrenis that the Contractoris in compliance with or exempt
from, 1he requirements of N.H. RSA chapter281-A (“Warkers®
Compensation”),

15.2 To the cxtent the Contractor is subject tu the requirements
of NNH. RSA chaptcr 28)-A, Contractor shafl mainrain, and
require aay subcontractor or assignee 1o secure and maintai,
payment, of Workens' Compensalion in connection with
sctivitics which the person proposes to undertake pursusntto ths
Agreement. The Contrectorshall fumish the Contracting Officer
identificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Worken'
Compensation in the manner described in NH. RSA chapter
28i-A and any applicable renewai(s) thereof, which shall be
attiched snd are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible (or payment of eny Workers'
Compensation premivms or for any other claim or benefit for
Conunclor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contmetor,
which might oris¢ under applicablk State of New Hampshie
Workers” Compensation laws in  connection wilh  the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Ansu notice by a party hereto to the other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of meiling by certificd mail, postage prepaid, in o Unlied Stares

. Post Office addressed 1o the. partics at the dddmsus given in

blocks 1.2 and | 4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may beamended, wa ived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signcd by the
partics hercto and unly after approval of such amendmeny
walver or dischurge by the Govemnor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshirc inlcss no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, ruk or policy,

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govered. interpreied and consied in accordance with the
Iawy of the Siate of New Harmpshire, and is binding upon and
inures to thebenefit of the pantics and their respective suceessors
and assigns. The wording uscd in this Agreement is the wording
¢hosen by the parties to express their mutuslintent, and no ruk
of construction shall be applicd againstor in favarof any party,
Any actions ansing out of this Agrcement shall be brought and
maintaincd in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have

exclusive jumdlcuon thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TI-:RMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified i EXHIBIT.
A) and/orattachmeats and amendment thercof, the terms of the
P-37 (asmodificd io EXHIBIT A) shall coutrol

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hercio do not intend to
benefit any third panies and this Agreement shall not be
construed to conferany such benefit,

21. HEADINGS. The beadings throughout the Agieemeni sre
for reference purposes only, and the words contsined thercin

‘shall in no way be held to cxplsin, modify, amplify oraid in the

interpretation, construction or meaningof the provisions of this -
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisiony set forth in the sttached EXHIBIT A are incorporn ted
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. [ntheeventany ofthe provisions of this
Agicement ars held by o count of competent jurisdiction to be
contriry to any state or fedenal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. '
24. ENTIRE ACREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
exccuted m a number of caunterparts, each of which shall be

‘deemed an original, constitutes the entic agreement ond

understanding between Lhe parties, and supcrscdes all prior
agreementsand undenstandings with respect ta the subject matier
hereof.

Page 4 of 4.
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|
EXHIBIT A

SPECJAL PROVISIONS

1. On or before thedate set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor shall
deliver to the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a qualified
independent auditor in good standing with the state and federat govemment.

-2. This sudit shall ba conducted in accordance with the audit requirements of Officc of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 2 CFR 200, Subpart F- Audit Requirements.
The Fuel Assistance Progmm shall be considered a “major program’ for purposes of this audit.

3. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor’s fiscal year, The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process to choosc a qualified financial suditor at Jeast every four years.

4. The audit report shall include a schedule of prior yenrs® questioned costs along with an Agency
responsc 10 the current status of the prior years' questioned costs. Copies of all OMB letters
written as a result of audits shall be forwarded to NH DOE. The audit shall be forwarded to
NH DOE within one month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompamcd by an action
plan foreach finding or questioned cost. ,

5. Delete the following from poragraph 10 of the General Provisions: “The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any
Final Report described in Exhibit A"

6. The costs charged undcr this contract shall be determined as allowable underthe cost
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpert E - Cost Principles.

7. Progrmm and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency for3
(three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR 200,333 ~
Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

§. Inaccordance with Public Lew 103-333, the “Departments of Labor, Health and Human
_Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995", the following
provisions are applicable to'this grant award:

a) Section 507: “Purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products - Itis the sense
of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all cquipment and products
purchased with funds made aveilable in this Act should be American-made.”

b) Section 508: * When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in
part with federa) money, all states receiving federal funds, including but not limited to
state and local govemments end recipients of federal research grants, shall cleatly state
()) the percentage of the total costs of the program or project which will be financed
with federal moncy, (2) the dollar ampunt of federal funds for the project or program,
and (3) the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program
that will be financed by non-govermenta) sources.”

TCCA LIHBAP22 ExhDdisA D& C 2 i
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9. CLOSE CUTORCONTRACT. All final required reponts and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within thirty (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

11. ADVANCES. Advancc funds must be used solely for appropriate Fucl Assistance Program
expenditures. Advance program funds are to be used only for Fuel Assistance Program vendor
payments. All Fuel Assistance Program payments, including Advance program payments, must
be transferred from the Community Action Agency’s general operating account into a specific
Fuel Assistance Program account within 48 hours after being received electronically from the
State. CAAS must submit the bank account nuraber of the designated bank account for the
edvance funds to NH DOE prior to the electronic submission of the fundstothe CAA. Unspent
Advance program funds must remain in the FAP dedicated 2ccount at a]) times and cannot be
comingled with any other CAA funds. CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy
of the FAP.dcdicated bank account statemeni to NH DOE on & monthly basis. |

TCCA LIMEAPIZ xhiblzA BAC -}Q\
CFDAM) S04 Cantractor [nitlats
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low income
individuals, and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the Program in
accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel
Assistance Program Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as detenmined

by NH DOE.

Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) services will be defined to include the following categornies:

1.

Outreach, eligibility, determination and certification of FAP epplicants.

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services dehvcrcd
b. Lines of credit
. ¢. Budget plan payments
3. Payments directly to landiords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as undefined
portions of their rent.
4, Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in the Fuel
Assistance Procedures Manual.
5. Emcrgency Assistance in the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above.
TCCA LIHEAP22 ' ' Exhibits A.B&C ! ‘
CFDAK). 361 Contrector (nitialy
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the State
agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $4,211,235.00 (which hereinafier is referred to as the

"Grant”). :

Upon the State’s.receipt of the 2022 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from the US
Department of Health'and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council approval, the
following funds will be authorized: '

$345,010.00 for administration costs, of which $43,126.00 will be issued as a cash advance;

$3,683,625.00 for program costs;
$182,600.00 for Assurance 16.

The dates for this contract are upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2023.

Approval to obligate (E.xhibil 1) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New
Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal funds become available.

~ Drawdowns from the balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written documentation
of cash need is submlittcd to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in accordance with
procedures established by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures Manual.

CFDA Title: . Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
CFDA No: 93.568 -
Award Name: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
- Federal Agency: ° Health & Human Services
Administration for Children and Families
Office of Community Services
TCCA LIHEAP22, : ' " EbisABA&C \ {
Coniractor Initialy
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBITD

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sectiong 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subritle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 e1seq.}, and further agreesto have the Contractor'srepresentative, as identified in Sccnons 1.} and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification: -

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE - FOR GRANTEI?.S OTHER THANINDIVIDUALS

us DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AN'D HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
USDEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
USDEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
USDEPARTMENT OF LABOR
USDEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections $151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Actof 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 70] erseq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published asPart 1 of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantess (and by inference sub-grantees and sub~contractors) prior to award that they will
maintsin a drug-free workplace. Scction 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grentee (and by inference
sub-grantees and sub-contraciors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the centification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant. Falsc centification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send itto:

Director, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 So. Fruit Sr,, Src. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A The grantec cerifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be takcn against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b)  Establishing an ongoing drug-frec awarcness program to inform employ ocs about

() the dangcrs ofdrugabusein lheworkplacc;
(2) the grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-frec workplace;
{3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
{4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees fordrug abuse violztions occwring in

thc workplace.

(<) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grani be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a),

" {d) Notifying the cmployce in the statement réquired by pamgraph (2) that,as a condition of
employment under the grant, the emplayee will

(1) abide by the terms of the statement; and
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVEI - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

USDEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMANSERVICES - CONTRACTORS
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US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
USDEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
USDEPARTMENT OF LABOR
USDEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
(2) notify the employer in writing of his ar her conviction for a violstion of a criminal drug
statute occumng in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.

(c) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice undet
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such con viction.
Employers of convicted cmployces must provide notice, inc luding position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shalt include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

) Taking ane of the following actions, within 30 calendardays of recciving notice under
subparagraph (dX2), with respect to any employee who'is so convicted:

() Taking appropriate personne! action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

emended; or . .

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assisunce or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
cnflorcement, or other appropriate ageacy. .

(8) Making a good faith effort to continue 1o maintain a drug-free workplace ihrough implementation
of paragraphs(a), (b), (c), (), (), and (£).

(B)  The grantee may inscrt in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work donc in
connection with the specific grant. ; T

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each Jocation}

Check [ if there are workplaces on file that are not identiGied here.

. 1\\'&"\\\ Cbmmn\\-‘ fichon mﬁm\,mc. )

; Upoo Gavemor & Council Approval to September 30, 2023
Contractor Name . Period covered by this Certification

Stonne Reln\ard _ Cynet E\(@\VLO-CQxC{,r

Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

-.. . | WS loosy

N
Contractorfepresentative Signaturc Date
. ‘P37 Exhibas Dthru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

'STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contracior identificd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compfy with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, asidentified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generml
Provisions, execute the following Certification: : -

-CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMANSERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate app!iclable‘program covered):
LIHEAP

Contract Period: Upon Govemnor & Council Approval 1o September 30, 2023

The undersigned certifics to the best of bis or her knowledge and belief that:

(1)  No federal appropriatcd funds have boen paid or will be paid by or oo bebalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer oremployee of Congress, or anemployee of 3 member of Congress in conneetion
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor).

2) If any funds other than federa) appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person (or
influencing or attempting to‘influence an officer or employcc of any agency, n member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or sn employee of a member of Congress-in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or coopenative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying ",
in accordance with its instructions, attached ond identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracis under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this fransaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this cenification is a prerequisite for making oz entering into this transaction
imposcd by Section 1352, Ticle 31, U.S. Code. Any person who Fails to file the required certification shall be

subject to a civil pemyty.ol npt lesdthan 310,000 and not morc than $ 100,000 for cach such failure.
RN (€0 _ '
ContracMepresematiw‘Signature Contractor's Representative Title
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
" STANDARD EXHIBITF

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrces to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order § 2549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debamnent, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s represcntative, as identified in
Sections .11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Cenification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certificarion

(13 By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
centification set out below,

(2) The inability of a person to'provids the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
patticipation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective pacticipant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the cestification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Depantment of Energy’s determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure
of the prospective primary panicipant to fumnish a centification or an explanation shail disqualify such person
from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clausc is a materia) representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined thal the praspective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroncous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government, NH DOE may terminale this transaction for cause or defaull.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate writicn notice to the NH DOE egency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submittcd if at any time the prospective primary participant leamns that its
certification was erronsous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,"” 'suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,”

 “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings sct out in the Definitions and Coverage scctions of the ndes
._implementing Exccutive Order 12549: 45 CFR Pan 76. See the attached definitions,

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shalt not knowingly enter into apy lowertier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transacuon, unless authorized by NH DQE,

(7) The prospecnvc pnmary participant fusther agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Cenification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Tneligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Ticr
Covered Transactions,” provided by NHDOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered tiansactions
and in al! solicitations for lower tier covered ransactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or invaluntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroncous. A participant may decide the method and

- frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each panicipant may, but is not required o,
chcck the Non-procurement List (of cxcluded parties).

9 Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order

{o render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and informationofa
participant is nol required 1o exceed that which is norm.nliy possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
coursc of busincss dealings..

(10) Except for transactions authonzed under paragraph § of these instructions, if a parlicipant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters intoa lower tier covercd transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this mansaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federl government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default,

£37 Exhibits D thruH
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AN'b OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont’d

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

() The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that itand its
principals:

(2) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any fodcral department or agency, )

) hove not within a three-year period preceding this proposel (contract) been convicted ofosrhad a
civil judgroent rendered against them for commissico of fraud or for o criminal offense in
coanection with obtaining, attempting to obiain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
trensaction or a contract under s public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statuics
orcommission of embezzlement, thefl, forgery, brbery, Falsification or destruction of records,
making false staternents, of receiving stolen property,

{c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmenta entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (i) (b) of
this certification; and '

(d) have not within a three-ycar period preceding this application/proposal had on¢ or more public
(federa), state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary panticipant is unablc to certify to any of the statcments in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibitity and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions
{To Be Supplied to Lowar Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Pant 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belicfthat it and its principals:

() are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debament, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any foderal department or agency.

(bj where the prospective Jower tict participant is unable to cartify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by subminting this propesal (contract) that it will include this
. clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Ticr Covercd Transactions,” withoul modification in all lower rier-covered ransactions and in all solicitations for

lower tiercovered

N
ContracfRUR cprosentative'Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tn- Lovalsy Ammn&fﬂghnn Rogram, mnc.___gft#/203]
Contractor Name ' Y " Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

“The Contractor identified in Section t.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11] ard 1.12 of the General Provigions, to execute the following
certification: :

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabiliies Act of 1990.

CE0

Conrractor's Represenunive Title

m, e, pifis/a |
) Date

P37 Exhibits D thu H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with Part C of Public Law 103-227, the "Pro-Children Act of | 994", smoking may not be permitted
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of bealth, day care, education, or
library sesvices to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by federal programs cither directly or
through state or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperstive agreements, loansand loan
guarantees, and contracts. The law doesnotapply to children’s services provided in private residences, fecilitics
funded solely by Medicare or Mcdicaid funds, and portions or facilities used for inpatient drug or alcobol

" treatment, .

The above language must be inchaded in any sub-awards that contain provisions for children’s services and that
all sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions ol this law may result
in the imposition of a civil monctary penalty of up to 51,000 per day. } .

Ceo

Contractor’s Representative Title

Contractor Name N L Date

P37 Exhibits D thea
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Exhibit L

LTHEAP2|
CFDANG).563

FAP Approval 1o Obligate EXAMPLE ONLY
APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE
FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
STATE -
Firat 7/4/2019 Wood and SEAS On!r ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
CONTRACTED BUDGET 538 220.00 5,648,370.00 4,682.60 357,200.00 8,546,372680 !
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00 .
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 1,165,551.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 538,220.00 4,490,819.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 _ 5,380,821.60
BMCA
First 7/12019° . ADMIN, FA PROGRAM ASSURANCE16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 85,883.00 1,003,566.00 1 oao 00 £9,960.00 1,170,200.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET - 000 -
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00. 0.00 0.00
(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE - 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00 |
TOTAL AVALLABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 707.112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 95,663.00 796,474.00 1,000.00 69,960.00 953,097.00
SNHS
First 7172019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
163,777.00 1,718,152.00 1,000.00 84.220.00 . 1,067,949.00
EXPECTED BUDGEY D : . 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
{THIS APPROVAL TO - YO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,570.00 0.00 0.00 354578.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 - 354,578.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TQ OBLIGATE 163,777.00 1,363,574.00 1,000,060 4,220.00 1,612,571.00
$CS
Firsl 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ___ ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET. 83,835.00 879,501.00 825.00 64,960.00 1,029,121.00 }
EXPECTED BUDGET ' 0.00 .
. PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .. 000
THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE .00 181,504.00 ° 0.00 0.60 184,504.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBUGATE - 0.00 181,504.00 - 0.00 0.00 181,504.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUIGATE 83,835.00 697,997.00 826.00 84,060,00 * 847,617.00
CAPSC
First 71172019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS __ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGEY $4,876.00 573,593.00 757.60 $5,110.00 094,136.60 |
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 '
PREVIOUSLY QBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,372.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00 ]
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.60 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE $4,676.00 455,220,00 757.60 55,110.00 505,763.60
TCCA
First 7/1/2018 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL .
[EONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1,471,538.00 1,000.00 32,950.00 1,605,757.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET j 0.00
PREVIOUSLY QBLIGATED .0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00
"TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,884.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 140,269.00 1,167,554.00 1,000.00 82,050.00 1,391,773.00
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Conractor Initisls
. Date 31



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBITJ

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) CQMPL[ANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparcncy Act (FFATA) requircs prime awardees of
individual federal grants cqual 1o or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related 10 exccutive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of 525,000 or more.
If the initial award is below §25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the awurd is subject lo the FFATA reporting requirementsas of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part | 70 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Informatinn),
the New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity

2) Amountof award

3) Fundingageacy

4) NAICS code for contracts ICFDA programnumber for grants

5) Program source
6) Awarditle dcscnptweoflhc purpose of the funding action
7} Location of the entity
8) Principal placc of performance
8) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executivesif:
a. More thon 80% of annual grossrevenues are (rom the Federal government and those
revenues are greater than $25M anoually, and
b. Campcnsation infarmation is not alrcady available throug.h reponting 1o the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA -required data by the end of!hc month plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendmentis made.

The Contractar identified in Sectien 1.3 of the Generat Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109.282 and Public Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR Part’ 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation [nformation), and
further agrees 1o have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the
Generul Provisions, execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractoragrees to providc needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Deparmnent of Energy and to comply with all applicable pl’O\’lSlOﬂS of the Federal Financial

Accountabilityand T[ansfarency Act.

(Contractor\R'!ﬂ';scmuivc Sigﬁamre) {Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

‘E)ﬁmbmm.h‘.ﬁxﬁm_ﬁb?mﬂ; (. T E,
{Contractor Name) Date)
Conimclorslnilials&
L] P

Date
Page l of 2
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NEWHAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractoridentifiedin Section | .3 of thc General Provisions, | certify that the responses tothe
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entityis: - ) IS Q35 F0%

2. In your business or organization'sprecedingcompleted fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. fedeml| contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annuai gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcantracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements? -

‘x NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here.

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the folowing:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section | 3(a) or £5(d) of the Sccuritics Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.5.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

NO YES

M the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.
If the answer to #3 above is NO, plcase answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your businessor
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount: __
Name: Amount: ____
Name: ____ . Amount: _____
Neme: Amount: _____
Name: : Amount: ___

Conuractor Initiats
Date

Page2of 2 g
LIHEAP2I CFDANS). 364



CERTIFICATE OF YOTE
(Corporate Authority)

I, . Ssndy Alonzo , elected official of _Tri-County Community Action Agency Program, inc.__
(Name) (Corporation name)

(Hereinafter the “Corporation™), 8 _Ne;w Hampshire corporaticn, hereby certify that: (1) [ am the duly
’ T (State)
clected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) | maintsin and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) [ am duly authorized lo issue centificates withy res rl 10 the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on [0, such authority
) {Dute)

10 be in force and effect until __September 30* 2023

{Coniract 1ermination datc)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized 1o execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corpotalion any coniracl or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Robillapd Chief Executive Officer .
{Name) {Position)
(Naﬂ;e) ' ) ‘ . (Position)

() The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with _Ngy_ﬂgnmhm
: {Statc of incurporution)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt of dated minutes or copy of article or section
of authorizing by-law mus! be attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand as the Elected official of the corporution this
Q" dayof November -, 2021.

STATE OF __New Hampshire
COUNTY OF __Coos

On this |5#‘ day of November, 2021, before me, _cm Moo, the undersigned
Officer, personally appeared __Snndy Alonzo  who acknowledged her/himsetf to be the Board Chair,
. of Tri-County Community Acton Program, Inc., a corporation and that she/he as such __Board

‘Chair being authorized to do so, exccuted the foregoing instrument for the purposes thercin cootained.

N WITNESS WHEREOF, [ hereunto set my hand and official seal.

ol blic/Justice of the Peace
CHRISTINA MORIN, Notary Public

Commission Expiration Date: S T ow Mampsie
My Commission Explres December 19, 2023



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardoer, Secretary of State.of the State of New Hampsbire. do hereby tertify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION.PROGRAM, INC, (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is s New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporalion registered to transsct business in
Mow Hampshire on May 18, 1965, [ further centify that ol fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office bave
been received and is in good standing a3 far o3 this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020
Cenificate Number: 00605352631

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

[ hercto s¢t my hand 20d cause to be affixed
the Scal of the State of New Hampahire,
this 5th day of May A.D. 2021.

GorLodr

William M. Gardner

Secrctary of State




DocuSign Envelope (D: 133090A8-BBAC-48E4-B0BI-00877720CB24

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

Authority to Sign

The Board of Directors of ri County Community Action Progiam. inc. (the “Corporation™)
takes the following action.

Rc;olved,

That the Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) Jeanne L.
Robiliard, or the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Randall S. Pilonte and Chief Programs Officer
(CPO) Kristy Letendre acting as a designee of the CEO, are hereby authonized on behalf of this
Corporation to enter into contracts with the Federal Government, State of New Hampshire, and
any other parties as deemed necessary and 10 execute any and all documents, agreements and
other instruments and amendments, revisions or modifications thereto, as may be deemed
necessary, desirable or appropriate for the corporation; this authorization being enforced and
effective until June 30, 2022, -

Attest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on May 25®,

2021
By, [I"Eﬁbw

Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title: Board Chair

Oannsigred by
By: [ MT’," S*."s
Name: George Sykes
Title: Treasurer




Coos County

a!'d Chair
Sandy Alonzo

8rian Hotfman

TRI-COUNTY

'COMMUNITY ACTION |

Serving Cods, Cerroll & Grafion Countles since 1963
Helpeg Vgl Ohegig Lo

Board of Directors

Y2022
Carroll County ' Grafton County
Linda Massimilla
Karolina Brzozowska
Richard Mcleod

- George Sykes

Ruth Heintz

E—a st



DATE (10T

corb? CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oo

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER Of INFORMATION OKLY AND CONFERS NO RIGNTS UPGN THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICTES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE i3SUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENMTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLOER.

e —— s
IMPORTANT: If the cartificats hotder ts an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the palicy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions of be endorsed.
# SUBROGATION |8 WASVED, sublect 1o ths terma and condltions of the policy. certain policies may require un sndarsement. A statement on

this certifcate does not conter rights to the certificats holder In Beu of such sndorsemantis).

PROOUCER oy Andrea Nicken '
| FiAl/Crous awrance {603) 869-3218 Ilm!E el {803} 8434331
1100 Eim Stroet Eﬁ;: Manch, cartu@crossagency.com
. IIURER(S] AFFORTING COVERACE RAKC §
Mencheaisr ) ) e 00 winmen a; PEdsiphia vdemnlly ins Co 18050
SOURED wuaEa e Srenfie State Hesth Cers and Human Services Seil-* 524292
TALounty Commurily Action Program, ing eisimcne:
30 Exchanga Sirest WRURIAD:
; ' NBURLA 81
Barin 2 NH 03870 T
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE KUMBER:  21-22ANiney REVISION NUNBER:

THES 13 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE IWSURED HAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOO
NDICATED, NOTWITHATAKDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERN OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THI3
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 13 SUDJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LOATS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED 8Y PAID CLAMS,

i Trie Of ocbunanct Jeeolmm POLELY wuMEER P Pt _umme
S| cosMERCTIAL CENFRAL LIASRITY M 4 1:000,000
" cuss e [2G ocom _ : | paoits Gasemorren, {8 190,000
- €0 00 pryonaparseny {8 3,000
A , X PHPI2203454 070172021 | 07K01/2022 A T, 1,006,060
.
QEMUAGOREGATE LINTT APPLIES PEA: | CenERAL AnOREGATE 4 3,000,000
% 'lngf D Loc | PROCUCTS - o A00 | 4 3.000.000
vz L i : b
AUTOMORLE LARRITY 1wl T4 1,000,000
2 mee o BO0LY BRY (Fer gurpn) | 4 .
(+] - SCHEOWED
A F_";gg‘uv s PHPK228344 | 0740172021 | 070172022 [300KY AURY P ecowett |
| AJTOS ONLY ATCE oMLY | iPe: scivert) 5 b4
] #
| _uesaziianas 1 oo _ | acH ccounmence 4 ansen
A )] etz uan ’ ] PHUBTI4416 0NV | OTRNF2022 | wnpmenare . g 2.000.000
oto_| X0 wyrgamon ¢ 1000 ‘ %
[WORKEAD COMPENIATION &Mﬁ
AND EMPLOTEAS LABAITY viN e
Ll ooy iCogelit-waadll T T ETR HCHS202 10000428 (3a,) NH 020172021 | 020172072 [ElaEAEH Bt
omicen i ivg ¢ prease acumorye §3 1.000.090
| ol RAPron o Cegnanon b g prseass -rovcyusar |4 11000000
i Each Occurronce 1,000,000
5 000,000
A | T ) PHPI2203454 1012021 | 0700172022 |Aggregate 3,000,000

mao‘mn@uumnm:mms (ACORD 191, AGRTens) Remarns §cheduls, may e stischusd If msre spats b roquired)
Rafer 1o policy for exchysionsry endorsements and speciol provisions,

. CERNFICATE HOLDER . CANCELLATION

SROULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIAED POLICIES B8 CANCELLED BEPORE
THE EXPIRATION OATE TRERZOS, KOTICE WILL @€ DELWERED IN

NH Deparument of Enargy ACCOROANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

21 South Frukt 5L, Bts. 10
AUTHORIZED RLPRESENTATIVE

Cancord NN 03301 M

L

ACORD 28 (2016/03) The ACORD nems and loge #/e registersd marks of ACORD

-

€ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights reserved.



Tri-County Community Acticn Program, Inc.

Key Personpel
FAP PY 2022
Name Job Title Salary 9% Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $120,000 0% 0
Randali Pilotte Chief Financlal Officer $85,080 0% 0
Kristy Letendre Chief Program Officer $80,000 0% 0
Brenda Gagne Economic Supports £65,000 35% $22,750
. : Department Head :
Josh Poisson Health and Nutrition $45,000 50% $22,500

Department Head




Jeanne L. Robﬂlard

T L ‘—‘

CORE STRENGTHS
Prograni development, management and edminiseestion ¢ Community collaborations
Development of palicy, protncol, and service delivery to meet funder stardards
Grant writng and management ¢ Budgee pesfarmance and finanial reporting
Innovative solutions & problem solving ¢  Capacity building
Professional presentations ¢ Public speaking
Dedicaion ¢ Imaginsion ¢ Determination ¢ Fortirude

Tri-Coundy Community Aetion I’rogfcm. ine
Chiel Execntive Oificer : '
Berlin, NH 2018 - eurront FT emplogmanst

Tri-Couniy Community Action Programs, Ine.

Chief Operating Officer

Berlin, NH 2016 - 2018 '

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three countics of Northern New Hampshize. Essential duties include;
supetvision of Division Directors, oversee and monitot program resources, reveaues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategies to improve individual programs and ovenall agency program
and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Aanual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems

in the daily opersdons of programs.

TrisCounty Commaunity Action Programs. Ine.

‘Division Direetar: TCCAP Prevention Services

Berlin, NU 3013 3016 _

Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversez
division resousces, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; genersl oversight of
programs to meet or exceed ageacy defined stracegic goals; supervise program directots; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare gramt reports and financial statements for funders
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
participagion in state and local initiatives relative to program/ division goals and service delivery;
collaborate with sukeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-County Community Action Programa, Ine.

- Program /Division Direcior Support Center ot Barch House

Littleton, New Hampshire 2007-3013

Ovetsee daily operaton and supervision of domestic and sexual violence casis centce and residential
shelter; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepate grant reports and financial
statements for funders and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward stracegic goals; create and direct vicdm advocacy
programs to ensute complisnce with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and markeing strategies; participate in statc and local collaborations to enhance vicdm
services; represent program in state and federal victim scrvice initiagves, including presenuation of
legislative tesdmony; create and present trainings for medica) and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services. .




JL Robillard * 2

Bookkooper: Women's Rural Enirepreacuriol Network (WREN)

Bothichom, N enrrent PT amployment

Respontible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account eansfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliadons for bank sccounts,
ctedit cards, petty cash, retail and macket sales; monthly POS/QB ceconciliagon for three rewil
locadons, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Dizeccars.

Tri.Connty Community Action Programs, Ine.

Direet Serviees/Volunteer Coordinaior: Sapport Center at Bareh Hounse
Listicton, New Hampshire 1897 t» 2007

Provide advocacy and ditect seevice to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court

sdvocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and intems; develop agency syscems,
policies and protocols; creace and present commuaity outreach presentadons and campaigns; present
school-based violence preveation classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: Haverhill Area Javenile Diversion Program

Woodsville, New Il.nmplllln 1989-2001

Recruit, uain, and supcrmc volunteer diversion commitiees; establish community programming for
diverted you(h suppomve counscling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships berween the court
tystem, juvenile service officers, Jocal pobce deparuments, and diversion program; prepare and file
coun reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Coonselor/Title I Neacthern Northern Family Institute-Jelierson Shelter

Jetlerson, New Hompshire 1096-1999

Provide individua) supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case manzgement services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills .

Education

BS in Homag Services, Springtield College Sehool of Hnman Servicea, Boston, MA
Criminal Jusdce Concentration, Graduated oith 4.0 GPA

AS in Drug und Alechol Rohabililation Connseling (PARC Program)
&mum-n ('.'omeclieut Community College. Now Haven, CT

Chajirman, Bcth.ld-ncm Board of Sclccanen, Town of Bethlthemn  Twice Elected 2006.2010
Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasurer 1996.1998
Chairman, Haverhill Acea Family Violence Council — 1998.2003

Certiticd PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Drver Intervention Program Insteucior #NH16199
Registered Sexual Harssiment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire

Board Member, Women's Rura) Encreprencurial Neewotk 2014, Indisidual Meoeber 2008-2017
Bethlchem Planning Board  2070. 2015

Bethdehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current

Granite Unlted Way, North Counury Cabinet Member  2011.2012

TCCAP: Commendadon- Division Director Award, 2071/

Bethlehem Citizen's Advisnry Cornminee on Recyding 20072010

Licensed Foster Parent, Statc of NH - 2000-2006

Smail Business Owmner : Aurora Energies 2075- awrrens

Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweer jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997 aromt

Member, United Seates Figure Skatog Assodiation/Internagonal Skadog Institute  avrrest since 1993
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RANDALL S. PILOTTE

SUMMARY

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with s single private manufecturer.
16 years of expesience managing accouating professionals. Key competencies inchude:

Financial Statemenots Accounts Payables Inventory . Fined Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounis Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits *  Forecasting

EXPERIENCE

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC., Berlin, NH 06/2013-Present

CFO {2017 — Present) : '

Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performance goals for the Agency and to

maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluste the

financial management systems and activities of the Agency witha budgetof $18M.

o Preparc/providescomplers and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside
regulatory agencies. :

o  As s member of the senior management (eam, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finaace
policies, objectives and programs.

e Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CRO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, implement and evahuate fiscal performance reviews of Tri -County CAPs divisions. .

e Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the department; recommend promations and salary
edjustments,

o Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, Jcases and
cavenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP’s facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan

o Revicws cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitorinvestments a830¢ iated
with each property.

o Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

Fisca) Director/Interim CFO (2016-2017)

e Dircet and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts rec¢ivable, cash receipts and fixed assety. : -

¢ Prepore and supervise theproduction of financial statements including Balance Sheeil, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries oo a monthly and annuval basis. .

¢ Mbpinwin proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to £nsure acursle revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring’s by funders and auditors.

e Ensure all balance shed, revenue and cxpense sccounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically.

o Collaborate with Division Directors to moniter departmental revenue and cxpenses versus budget.

e Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly snd annual financial reporting; and implementing
departmental goals. : '
Prepare audit schedules for externel suditors.
Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual sudit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:




ON GROUP, INC. (fA/ e Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010
Assistant Controller (2005-2010) -

o Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and

individual financial statoment in accordance with GA AP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
" gross revenues i excess of $200M. Additiona! responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account

anelysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation. ;

e Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate jowrnal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax retums, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

o Oversaw all aspects of proprictary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federl

and slfltel;::kymll tax reports, inchuding quartsrly and year-cnd seturns, processing of W23, and supervision of

payrollc ; .

Toterfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.

Prepared multi-statc sales/iuse tax returns and acted 3 point of cantact for audits.

Pro-actively coached apd consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.

Oversaw month-end accruals. ‘

Assisted snd responded to auditors’ requests oo amual audit.

Filed annua} franchise and sbendoned propesty reports with appropriato states.

Accounting Manager (1599-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller’s initiatives by providing supcrvision ead oversight to the Accounting function.
- Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accaunts Paysble, timely and accurate

processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbigsaments, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor(1994-1999) |

Accountant (1959-1994)

~ NORTHERN TELECOM, INC., Concord, NH 05/1987-03/1989
_ Assoclate Results Accountant (1988-1989) ;

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)
EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, FRANXLIN PIERCE COLLEDE, Concord, NH



Kristy
Letendre

“Ifhuman beings are perceived as poteatials rather than
problems, as possessing strengthyinstead of weaknesses.as
unlimited rather thandul andunresponsive, thentbeythrive

andgrow totheircapabilities.”

~Barbara Bush

J Ex pe[!en_gg

Judy 2020-Presant
Chief Programs Officer * TCCAP, Inc

Responsible to provide feadership, supervision, oversight, and management of
the agency's programs and services directly or througb a program director or
manager es well as works with the Chief Executive Officer lo develop furure
Business for the agency. Responsible to ensure that all programs and services
comply with nations! program standards and state / foderal governing laws and
requircments.

May 2019-Presont ) g
Division Director = TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the development,
design, daily operation, complisnee, and financial solvency of the programs
end facilites under Prevention Services which include Guardiznship Services;
Homeless Programs, inctuding Tylez Blaio Homeless Shelter, and Advocacy
and Support Services for Victims of Domestic Violence and Sexual Asssult,
including Emergency Shelter Services at the Support Center at Burch House

Sopt 2018-Presont
Divislon Opertticas Coardinator ® TCCAP, Inc- Prevention

Responsible for mozitoring compliance of grant defiverables and legal / ethical
integrity of programs and scrvices offered throughout the Division. Responsible
to compile and anslyze division dats; reporting gends and ovtcomes to Sr.
management and locsl stakebolders. Responsible to develop, review, and
.update program written policy, procedures, and work flows. Responsible for
program development and oversight.

May2017-August 2018
Nortb Country SUD Continuum of Care Faclli L {4,
Coordinstor *North Country Health Consortjpfi” R

el gtalg Jinlsoi responsidle to
ia'caniischenive assets actl gaps
S ankl Ja¢ittiowe dic developmént
~p fbust, clfecive; and wall-

.w'.}:t;l.-n:. WL e sl dawrinim e

COCF: The North Country Region’s desi
work withregional key stakeholders to cond
analysis; reporting back findings to NH.D
of s comprehensive plan aimed to cre
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April 2014-May 2017
Division Dlrector + TCCAP, Inc- Clinical Services

Fricodship House @ \Responsible to provide Sr. Leadership and oversight to the dovelopment,

: - Suign, daily operation, compliance, and financial solvency of the progrems and

itics under Clinical Services including the Division of Alcchol and other

g ices, Friendship House; the region's 32- bed Residential Treatment
#rilitg, and the Tamworth Dental Center Practice.

Project

derlh[p and oversighl 1o the deve lcpment design, daity operation,
¢ compliance, and financial solvency of the programs and facilities under the
~ " Fivision of Alcohol and other Drug Services, including Priendship House, the
+ Jregion's 32- bed Residential Treatruent facility, the out-patient SUD treatment
practice with 6 satellite sites throughout the 3 counties in the North Country snd
the Lmpaired Driver Care Menagement Program.

Accomplishments

Friendship House New Construction-Bethlehem, NH-§5.2 MIL - 2015-2018
17,588-5q ft, 32-Bed Residential Substance Use Disorder Treaiment Facﬂify

e  Submission of state ond federal grant lpphcnuons mmlhq in $2.7 MIL in
awards & execuied a grassroots sdvecacy ca.mpa:gn securing the remaining §2.5
MIL in anomymous donations

o lssued ol final project approvals on the design, project developmeni,
construction, submission of permit applications and town zoning requircnents,
and licensuze and compliance standards.

" Implemented Ncw‘Rcimbursemm System, 2015

»  Elimiated the Division's dependenes oo grant funding by successfulty procuring
contracts and ccedentisling with NH Medicaid, MCO's, and Commercial
insuracce corzpanies creating eligibility tosubmitclaims onafee-for-service basia
stabilizing revenue and enhoncing rates for gervice.

¢ Successfully negotisted v contract amendment with DHHS to expand billable
services to include Outpetient and intensive Outpatient services resulting in an
increase to from 318 MIL to 32.5MIL )

Expert Panelist - Guidance Document on Best Practices: Community-Based
MAT for Opioid Use Disorders in New Hampshire, First Edition, 2016

Cilvic lnvolvement

2019 - Present MWV Supports Recovery Adsory Bond ,Mcmbcr
2017 -Present  North Country Serenity Cegler 1O | - -.Offjeer
2016 - Present  Stand-Up Androscoggin VAiley { ‘mlmon < Mainber

2016-2018 Project Aware, BHS, Adysery Bourd ~Member

2017~ Present  Littleton ATOD Coalitidy . < Member
2018 - Present  Lancaster Area Coalitio - - Menther
2016-2017  NCHC Board of Directed | 1 - Member
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Skdlls :
Creative flair Good sense of humor | Excellent written and
oral cormmunication
= ; skills
.Thaging Community | Culrure] intelligence | Well- informod in
‘Potsinter policy and procedure
R ) development
-+ [ Profdlent in Officc | Versatile and Proficient in budget
| Sy sdzptable development and
' ‘| management )
|.Solution focused Computer and Lateral thinking and
:|apréblem resolution techoology adept logical reasoning -
| Y4hique lsadership Knowledgeable grant | Innovative
ugh empowerrent | writer ;
Detail oriented Creative strategic Expericneed non-
planner profit manongement
Excellent Community | Advocacy Arpproachable,
and political relations : relotable, and relevant

Education

Plymouth State Unlversity, Plymouth NH.

2017-In Progress{Business Adroinistration

Courscwork: accounting, economics, finance, management, marketing theories
and practices of business ethics and social responsibility, quantitative skills to
analyze.

White Mountsins Community Collége, Berlin NH.

2015-2017 [Business Administration

Coursework: managemenl, accounting, finance, strategy, economics, statistics,
marketing, operslions/project management, entrepreneiirship, and computes
applicatians. Completed requircments of the first two years of a-four-year
business administration degree, AS-cquivalent, 4.0 GPA

White Mountains Community College, Berllo NH.

2011 [Leadership North Country

Coursework: The program selects a diverse group aspiring feaders in northern
New Hampshire through 8 competitive nomination and application process.
Candidates participate in 8 9-month program focused oo educstion, arts asd
culture, leadership and civil cngagement, travel and tourism, and government
and politics.

References
Avnilable upon request .




Brenda Cagne
Tri County Community Actiop Program Inc.

Professional Skills:

Demonstrated administrative expenence and skills

Fiscal managemcat skills or experience in administening grants and/or departmeni budgets

Strong grant development cxpcricﬁce, high quality rescarch, for federal, state funding

Excellent interpersonal skills with an ability to build and maintain among faculty and staff

Previous administrative experience or evidence of administrative skills required to lead a large departrnen't :
Leadership skills and experience to unplement policies and procedures ‘

Effective communication skills and team building capabilities

Tri County Communlty Action Program
Economic Supports Depariment Head
6/2020 to Present

Manage a department of 4 Program Directors and staff

Ad vise programs on funding opportunities to include Federul, State:and Local
Represent Agency at State and Local levels.

Monitor Program Budgets and Operations

Handle staff complaints when merited

Tri County Transit
Director of Transportation
§/2017 - 6/2020

Responsibllities include;
Oversight of the opcrations, maintenance and sdministrative functions of a social service transportation program
serving Coos, Northemn Grafton and Carmroll Counties.

Grant Management Siate of NH DOT, NH DHHS
Drug & Alcohol Management

Financial Management

Title VI, ADA Policy Management

Trl County Transit
Opcrations Manager
7/2004-5/2017



Responsibilities include;

*Running the daily operations of a public transit and para transit service.
*Facility Management.

*Gathering statistics

*Quatterly reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.
*Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
*Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
*Creating procedure manuals

*Grant writing

*Budget preparation

*Writing Warrant Anticles

*Drug & Alcohol Testing

*Emergency Preparedness

Mountain Village Construction
Accounts Manager/Offico Manager
5/199S - 1/2004

Responsibilities Included;

*Customer service. :

* Accounting using Quick Books Pro.

*Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.

*Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.

* Accounts Reccivable and Accounts Payable.
*Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
*DataEntry.

*Phone cornmunications and general secretanial duties.

Milan Parks and Recreation Dept.
Parks and Recreation Director
6/1997 - 3/2002

Responsibilities included;

*Directed and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dummer,

*Development of new programs and ycar round activities.

*Producing yearly budgets.

*Applying for Federal and Slate Grants.

Educaton:

Granite State College
Emergency Management

Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration



JOSHUA POISSON

PROGRAM DIRECTOR
ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES

KEY SKILLS

MS Office Suite proficients Ability to
work collaboratively » Problem
solving * Leadership skills « Excellent
organizational skills = Meticulous
attention to detail = Approachable
and relatable « Strong interpersonal
& communication skitls

CONTACT

ACTIVITIES AND INTERESTS
Family = Travel » Fishing » Hiking

"REFERENCES

Available upon request

EXPERIENCE

PROGRAM DIRECTOR - ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES, TCCAP, INC.
MAY 2021 - PRESENT

Directiy responsible for the supervision and operation of all
personnel, programs, and projects under Fuel & Energy Assistance,
Manage fiscal operations including budget development and
authorization of expenditures while following all guidelines and
procedures given by the F egieral Government.

ACCOUNTING TECHNICIAN & BUDGET ANALYST, TCCAP, INC.
NOV 2015 - MAY 2021
Responsible for reviewing and processing all accounts payable

-invoices submitted from the organization’s programs. Process

check runs on a weekly basis. Review the company’s cash receipts
t_iaily. Monthly reconciliations of vendor accounts. Yearly tasks
include 1099 tax form creation and assisting with budget process.

BOOXKEEPER TRANSIT DIVISION, TCCAP, INC.

MAR 2015 - NOV 2015 ’

Responsible for daily processing of invoices, counting of bus fare
collection boxes, and preparation and depositing of funds.
Reconcile vendor accounts for accuracy, assist with division budget
¢creation, and monthly reconcifiation of bank accounts.

EDUCATION

NH COMMUNITY TECHNICAL COLLEGE, BERLIN NH
1998 | COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY

PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY, PLYMOUTH NH
1997 | TEACHER - PHYSICAL EDUCATION

BERLIN HIGH SCHOOL, BERLIN NH
1993 - 1997 | GENERAL EDUCATION

CIVIC AFFILIATIONS
2019-2021 Board Treasurer North Woods Learning Center
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Leone,
McDonnell
& Roberts

To the Board of Directors of PROFESSIONAL ASSOCITION
gg-ri(i::ul\rlgv C}-?:mml;?\litriz Action Program, inc. and Affiliate CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
' P WOLFERORO « NORTI] CONWAY
DOVER = CONCORD
STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controi
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. g

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govermnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures'in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit apinion. ;



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairty, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2020
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 28, 2020. in our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived. '

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is_presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial .
statements. Such information. is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates diréctly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 28, 2020, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not o provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance. : :

M Ve Dol & f-’.,ob‘ “ld
November 19, 2021
North Conway, New Hampshire



IRLCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND AFFILIATE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 21 AND 2020
ASSETS
2021 2020
CURRENT ASSETS ‘
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,237,032 $ 2,257,081
Rastricted cash, Guardianship Services Program 1,317,839 796,937
Accounts receivable 1,617,249 1,322,852
Property held for sale - 47,000
Pledges receivable 216,423 307,017
Inventories 52,985 102,430
Prepaid expenses 53,594 77.882
Total current assets 6,495,122 4,911,199
PROPERTY
Property and equipment 12,817,935 12,344,805
Less accumulated depreciation (5,850,185) {5,601,944)
Property, net 7,067,750 6,742 861
OTHER ASSETS .
Restricted cash 439,822 384,711
TOTAL ASSETS ' $ 14,002,694 $ 12,038,771
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of leng term debt $ 129,155 $ 437,843
Current portion of capital lease obligations - 3,554
Accounts payable 4,303 180,427
Accrued compensated absences _ _ 233,907 243,779
Accrued salaries . . 383,435 48,059
Accrued expenses 266,595 137,304
Refundable advances 324,140 . 181,463
QOther liabiiities ‘ 1,400,645 - 850,982
Total current liabilities ) 2,742,180 2,084,411
LONG TERM DEBT :
Long term debt, nel of current portion 4 577,305 4,792 557
Total liabilities 7,319,685 6,876,968
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 6,199,624 4,565,253
With donor restrictions 483,385 596,550
Total net assets 6,683,009 5,161,803
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS _ $ 14,002,694 $ 12,038,771

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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IRI-COUNTY COMMURNITY ACTION PROGRAM.JNC, AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

IZED COMP, 0 TION
Without Donor With Donor 2021 2020
) Restrictions Restrictions Total Total
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Granls and contracts $ 18,296,354 $ 415,056 $ 18711410 § 14,809,313
Program funding 1,177,937 - 1,177.937 1,084,133
Utitity programs 2.659,293 - 2,659,293 1,923,653
In-kind contributions 364,580 - 364,580 455,826
Contributions 462,340 - 462,340 326,215
Fundraising 1,802 - 1.802 32,544
Rental income 684,169 - 684,169 635,559
Inlerast income 888 - 8g8 923
{Loss) gain on disposal of property (27.288) - {27,288) 257,17
Loss on wiite down of property held for sale - - - (255,492)
Other revenue 13,364 = 13.364 4379
Total revenues and other support 23,633,439 415,056 24,048,495 19,374,770
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS A 528,221 {528,221) - -
Total revenues, other suppon, and
nat assets released from restrictions 24,161,660 {113,165) 24,048 495 19,374,770
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program Services:
Agency Fund 1,017 860 - 1,017,860 1,047,356
Head Starl 2,856,419 - 2,856,419 2,769,085
Guardianship 760,053 - 760,053 769,597
Transporation 870,078 - 870,078 §91,504
Volunteer 96,817 96,817 94 845
Workforce Development 40,175 - 40,175 346,114
Carroll County Dantal 669,641 . 669,641 653.810
Suppor Center 356,359 - 356,359 558,244
Homeiess 4,760,908 - 4,760,809 800,148
Energy and Community Developmanl 8,541,527 - 8,541,527 7,824,201
Elder 1,192,453 - 1,192,453 1,149,136
Housing Services 192 010 - 192,010 220,900
Total program services 21,354 301 - 21,354 301 17,224 920
Supporling Activities.
General and adminisirative 1,172,988 - 1,172,988 1,062,613
Fundraising - - s 2,880
Total supporting activities 1,172,988 = 1,172,988 1,065,493
Total functional expenses 22,527,289 - ___ 22527 289 ' 18,290,413
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,634,371 (113,185} 1,521,208 1,084,357
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,565,253 596,550 5,161,803 4077449
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 6,199,624 S 483,385 $ 6683000 § 5161806

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATENENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
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JIELCOUNTY COMNUNITY ACTION PROGEAN, (NG, AND AF FILIATE
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IRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM,INC, AND AFFILIAIE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES - '
Change in net assets $ 1,521,206 $ 1,084,357
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities: )

Depreciation and amortization 450,040 436,197
Loss (gain} on disposal of property 27,288 (2.225) .
(Incraase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (294,367) {48,769}
Piedges recsivable 90,584 {75,856}
Inventories 43,445 {16,544}
Prepaid expenses 24,288 (43,845)
Increase (decrease} in liabilities:
Accounts payable (176,124) (41,144}
Accrued compensated absences {9,872) - 39,700
Accrued salaries 334,376 (161.883)
Accrued expenses 129,291 47,780
Refundable advances 142,677 {15,694}
Other llabllities ' 549 663 252,787

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,838.475 1,454 851

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property : 25.000 4,495
Purchases of property and equlpment | (780,217} (273,711)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES {755,217) (269,216)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ' =
Repayment on long-term debt \ (523,740} (145,884}
Repayment on capital lease obligations (3,554) {(4,671)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ' (527,294) {150,555)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 1,555,964 1,035,080

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3438729 2,403,649

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR $ 4994693 $ 3438726

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:
$ 131,879

Interest $ 135643

See Notes to Consolidated Financial S.taterr-mnls

7



NOTE 1.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020°

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Comerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated -under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities
The Organization’s programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration, is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.’'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors. :

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.

8



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Aizheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation ; o

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization’s fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer ' ;

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 393 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 225
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public -agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet theé needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 28,000 hours yearly.

Workforce Development .
The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currentiy-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

" Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

10
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services: The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low-income Weatherization

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower. their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 14 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services ;
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. {Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD. -

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National

. Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

1



; CTION PROG NC, AND
NOTES _TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Regquirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit of Comerstone’s
compliance with its major federal program in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the
audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). An unmodified
opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting-in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
* Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash. '

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
~Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net-assets with donor restrictions of $483,385 and $596,550
at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. See Note 13.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally. accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.. '

- Property and Depreciation :
Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 510 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment , 5to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, inc.’s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the aliowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients. -

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $324,140 and $181,463 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable . .
contribution deduction for donors. The Organization files information returns in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 930 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
“years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The
Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a). ' '
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the
Organization'’s 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at-the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable fo the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no
unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2021 and 2020. :

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $216,423 .and $307,017,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates ' : :
The presentation of financial statements in conformity. with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments ;
Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization’s financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts réceivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments..

Functional allocation of expenses _

The costs of providing the various programs and other activites have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities -
benefited. :
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Program salaries _and related expenses are allocated to the various
programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

' Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are 'used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

. The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and

are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
* The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees, and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 10.80%. The-actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2021 was approximately 11.37%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $28,130 and

$25,483, respeclively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organlzatlon retrospectively adopted the
prowsmns of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
“Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.” The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2021 and 2020.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Organization derives revenue primarily from grants, contracts, ‘and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Top1c 606) - Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced the
most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires
expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of
revenue from cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Organization
adopted the new standard effective July 1, 2020, the first day of the Organization’s
fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption did not result in
a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue streams; as such, no
cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. See revenue recognition policy above.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread continue to affect the Organization’s business. The significance of the
impact of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the
Organization's financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of govemmental regulations
that might be imposed in response to the pandemic.

During the years ended June 30, 202t and 2020, and through the date of this
report, the Organization has not experienced a significant decline in revenues, nor a
significant change in its operations.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2021

and 2020:
2021 2020
Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 3,237,032 $ 2,257,081
Accounts receivable 1,617,249 1,322,852
Pledges receivable 216,423 307,017
Total financial assets 5,070,704 3,886,950
L.ess amounts not available to be |
used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 483,385 596,550
Less net assets with time restrictions to be
met in less than a year (412,665) (410,015)
Amounts not available within one year 70,720 186,535

Financial assets available to meet general

expenditures over the next twelve months  $__ 4,999,084 3 3700415

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $3,569,000 and $2,860,000 at June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.
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.CoU UNITY ACTION PROG

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. . The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.

" The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

2021 2020
Cash, operations $ 3,237,032 $ 2,257,081
Restricted cash, current 1,317,838 796,937
Restricted cash, long term _ 439,822 384 711
Total cash and restricted cash $.4.994 693 $3438729

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Depariment of
Agriculture.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $20,059 and $20,040, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

. The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with- another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2021 and 2020 was $174,755 and $174,626, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.
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NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $1,317,839 and $796,937, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2021 and 2020
was $1,317,839 and $796,937, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $245,008 and $190,045, respectively. See Note 15.

INVENTORY

In 2021 and 2020, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2021 and 2020 consists of weatherization materials,
totaling $52,985 and $102,430, respectively.
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PROPERTY
Property consists of the following-at June 30, 2021:
Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value
Building $ 9,931,853 $ 4,233,084 $ 5,698,869
Equipment 2,394,489 1,617,101 777,388
Construction '
in progress 172,653 - 172,653
Land : 418 840 - 418,840
$12017935  £5850185 $7.007.790



'NOTE 6.

-COUl C 0 c

-NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2020:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value
Building $ 9,810,288 $ 3,753,302 - $ 6,056,986
Equipment 2,105,950 1,848,642 257,308
Construction
in progress 4,727 - 4,727
Land 423,840 - 423,840

$12.344.805  $5601.944 $.6.742.861

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled
$449,153 and $435.310, respectively.

The Organization had property held for sale at June 30, 2020 amounting to
$47,000, which was classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position at June 30, 2020. The total loss on the write down
to fair value of this property was $255,492 in 2020.

ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2021 and
2020, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $233,907 and $243,779,

- respectively.
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IRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFEILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 consisted of
the following:

2021 2020
Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027. $ 96,062 $ 110,824

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936, including interest at 4% per
annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final instaliment due April:
2031. 285,268 307,719

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit
that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016 and was paid off during the
year ended June 30, 2021. - 4,478

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72

monthly installments of $312, including interest at

5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's

vehicle. This note was paid off during the year w

ended June 30, 2021. - 4,228

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30, 2021. ' - - 3,948

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. This note was paid off during the year ended
June 30, 2021. - 705
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IRLCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. * This note was paid off during the year
ended June 30, 2021.

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. This note was paid off during
the year ended June 30, 2021.

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
instaliments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and wili be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047. -

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years;
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt

issuance costs .
Unamortized debt issuance costs

Total long term debt
Less cuirent portion due within one year
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2021 2020
- 7,294

- 387,227
2,467,774 2,547,308
1,617,600 1,617,600
250,000 250,000
4,716,704 5,241,331
(10,044) (10,931)
4,706,660 5,230,400
(129,155) __ (437,843)
24577500 34792507



NOTE 8.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Years ending

June 30 Amount
2022 . $ 129,155
2023 134,452
2024 ‘ 139,961
2025 145,697
2026 . 151,677

Thereafter ' 4,015,762
$ 4716704

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, which expired in November 2020 and
March 2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company
leased an additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, which expired in May
2021. The assets and liabilities under the capital leases were recorded at the lower
of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets.
The assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2021 and 2020, COHSISted of

the following:
_ 2021 - 2020
Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease was
secured by the phone system and matured in

November 2020. : $ - $ 1,213

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly instaliments of $122 for principal and
interest' at 8.841% per annum. The lease was

secured by a copier and matured in March 2021,
- 944
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IRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC, AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

021 2020

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly instaltments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease was

secured by a copier and matured in May 2021. - 1,397

- 3,554

Less current portion - (3,554)

$ - $ -

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE
The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the fine bear interest at 5.00% per annum. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2021 and 2020. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES
The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For
the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $138,598 and $181,004, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2021, are as follows:

Years ending

June 30 Amount
2022 $ 127,467
2023 65,722
2024 43,884
2025 43,884
2026 42,869

Thereafter ' 3512
s 327,338
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NOTE 1.

NOTE 12.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of beiow
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
approximatély $18,238,690 (76%) and $14,380,020 (74%), respectively, of the
Organization’s total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization’s programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2021 and 2020, approximately 67% and 68%, respectively, of the
Organization’s total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future
existence of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding
policies of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. '

The.majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes

may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,

including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are avaitable for the following specﬁ“ ¢ program
services as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 216,423 $ 307,017
FAP 174,056 102,998
Restricted Buildings 39,913 85,713
Loans — HSGP 24,403 22,029
FAP/EAP _ 16,330 24,350
RSVP Program Funds - 5,887 5,887
Head Start 5,856 -
RSVP - Matter to Balance 500 500
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 17 -
DOE - . 46,287
Donations to Maple Fund - 1,571
Loans — HHARLF » ' - 104
Coronavirus Response - 94
Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 438385 $ 596550

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.
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NOTE 15.

] CTIO G C. AND

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing B8uilding contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Departiment’s satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediatian.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018 and subsequently, lega! actions were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as
of June 30, 2021, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization’s potential liability,
no amount has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Cornerstone Housing North, [nc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $181,723 and $155,278 were held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2021:and 2020, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes. '

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $59,517 and $31,049 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. :

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The: policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.
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NOTE 16.

NOTE 17.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

In accordance with the policy noted above, the Organization was required to remit
funds to HUD totaling $31,412 during the year ended June 30, 2020. In addition to
the funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment during the year ended June 30, 2020.

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year’s financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through November
19, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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IRLECOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC, .

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS
EOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE ), 2021 z

GRANTOR'S
i FEDERAL PAS3-THRQUGH IBENTIFYING FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE *ALM GRANTOR'S NAME NUMBER EXPENDITURES
HEAD START CLUSTER
Head Stan 93.600 01CH10000-06-00 5 1,811,807
Head Stan 93.500 1CH011836-01-00 1,100,815
CRSSA-Head Stort 93.600 44,554
CLUSTER TOTAL 2857180
Low-income Home Energy Assistance $3.568 State of New Hampshire Office of Energy and Planning G-208 1NHLIEA 171,618
Low-incoma Homae Energy Assistance 93.568 State of New Hampshirs Office of Enargy and Flanning G-21BINHLIEA 4,833 072
CV-Low-incoma Homa Energy Assistance 91.568 State of New Hampshirs Office of Energy and Planning 200INHESCY T87.286
Low-incoma Home Energy Assistance 93 528 State of New Hampshirs Office of Enargy and Planning G-208 INMLIEA 1058420 {12,553)
Low-income Homa Energy Assistance 93.568 State of New Hampshira Office of Energy end Planning G-2181NHLIEA 1058420 221 527
TOTAL 8.008.950
AGING CLUSTER
Speda Programs for the Aging - Title Mk, Part B - Grants {or Supporivd Services and Senlor Canters (SEAS) 91.044 State of New Hampshire Office of Energy and Planning 1BAANHTISS 6,459
Special Programs for the Aging - Tide 1IL. Pact B - Grants for Supportive Services and Sanior Centers (Sr. Whesls) 93.044 State of New Hampshire Depantmant of Hegith and Human Sanvices 512-500352 81,322
TOTAL T
.
Spacipl Programs for the Aging - Title 1B, Pari € - Nuirition Services {Congrogats 8 HD Maats) 93.045 State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 541-500388 300,127
Cv-Special Programa for the Agiag-Tige U1, Pan C - Nutriion Services {Congregata & HD Maaks) §3.045 State of New Hampshire Department of Haath snd Human Services 181,544
TOTAL — atB
Nutrition Senvces Incantiva Pragram (NSIP) 93.053 State of New Hampshire Department of Haalth and Human Sarvices NONE 93 340
. CLUSTER TOTAL 842,822
Comvrunity Services Block Grant 93.569 Stale of New Hampshlrs Depariment of Haalth and Human Socvices 102500731 470,848
CV - Community Sarvices Block Gram 93.568 State of New Hampshire Ceparimant of Heatth and Human Services NONE 2TDA00
TOTAL —I50248
Temporary Assistance lor Nesdy Faentigy {NHEP Workplace Success) 93.558 Southem Nea Hampahva Servicas, Inc. 16-DHHS-BWW-CSP-05 38127
Temporary Assistpnca for Neady Famiies {JARC) §3.558 State of New Hampshira Depariment of Health and Human Sarvices 1B02NHTANF 24 800
' TOTAL 80,927
HIV Carg Fomuta Grants (Ryan YWhite Care Program) 93.e7 State of New Hampshirs Depsnment of Health and Human Sarvices 530-500311 2,932
Sodal Services Biock Gaand (Thle XX 1AR) 92.667 Siate of New Hampshirs Depariment of Health and Human Services 545-500187 104,826
Social Sarvices Block Grant (Title XXX HD) 03.687 State of New Hampshire Depanmant of Hazallh and Human Services 544-500388 85.043
Social Servicay Glock Grant (Guankanship) 03.887 Stata of New Hampshire Daparument of Heaith and Human Senvices 102-500731 13,524
TOTAL 203,39
-
Promuing Sats and Stabls Famies/Farmily Vicknce Prevention and Services/Discrstionary 53.556 & 93.532 Siate of New Hampshire Coattion agains! Domestic and Saxual Viclence SPIRDV 13.228
Provider Retef Fund 93.498 _ nemn
Projects for Assistance in Transkion trom Hometessnoss §3.150 State of New Hampshire Office of Human Services. Bureau of Homoless  05-85-42-423010-7925 52,372
Spacial Programs for the Aging Tile IV and Titte Il Discretionary Projects 93.048 Univarsity of New Hampshine 15,000
CV-Soecial Progroms for tne Aging Tite I and Titk 1) Discrelionary Projects 93.048 Uriversity of New Hampshine —_— 1918
; TOTAL 34,319
Teial U.5. Departmont of Health and Human Services § 10758032



IRECOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC, |

SCHEDULE OF EXPENIDNTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS
EQR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

GRANTOR'S
FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH {DENTIFYING FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE ALN GRANTOR'S NAME MNUMBER EXPENDITURES
U5, Denyriment of Energy
Waatherization Assistance 1or Low-Income Persons £1.042 State of New Hampshire Govarnor's Office of Energy & Community Service EEDOD7925 $ 277.884
Tatal U.S, Deporimant of Eneegy $ 277 664
]
Retired and Sanior Volumser Prognam 04.002 19SRAMHOO1 $ 77,198
Toin .S, Corporation for National ang Community Service $ 17.198
1.3, Depaciment of Aaricuiture
Child and Adutt Care Food Program 10.558 State of New Hampshire Department of Education NONE $ 134,900
FOOD DISTRIBUTION CLUSTER
Emargancy Food Assistance Program 10.589 BMCAP CLUSTER TOTAL 17,739
Total U.S, Deparument of Agricutura s 158,639
L and S i
Emargency Food 8 Sheltar Program (FEMA) 97.024 5 $ 5,885
Gv-Emargancy Food 4 Shalter Program (FEMA} 97.024 22,775
Total U.S. Dep w of | d S H 28,661
i
Crima Victim Assistance (VOCA) 18.675 State of New Hampehire Coalition agalngt Domestic end Sexual Vielence VOCA 3 112,770
Sexua Assaull Sanvices Formuda Program (SASP) 16.017 State of New Hampshive Coeftion againit Domestic and Sexua! Viclence 2019-KF-AX-0043 17,173
OVW Technical Assistance inltative 16.'526 Gradion County Count OvW-2016-13829 13,794
Total U.S. Department of Justica 3 143737
1.8, Qepartment of Tranaceration
Forrruta Grants for Rural Areas (Section 5311) 20.509 Siate of New Hampshira Oepartmant of Transportation MH-18-X048 $ 578.390
TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER
£nharced Mabifity ¢f Seriont ond Individuals with Disabiities 20,513 Stats of Now Hampshire Dapactiment of Trangportatian NMH-65-X006 8,287
CLUSTER TOTAL 8,297
Tokal U.S. Deparimant of Trensponation § 532687
al hd i
Emacgency Sohtions Grant Program 14.231 State of New Hampehirs Daparknent of Health snd Human Senvices 102-500731 H 82,825
CV-Emangancy Schuions Grant Program 14,23 Siate of NH Govemor's Office for Emargency Ralef & Recovery — 59,804
TOTAL —21428
) Continuum of Cara Program (HOIP) 14,267 Siste of New Hampshive Depanmant of Haalth and Human Sanvices HHED2ONECIF1 71,885
Contntum of Care Program (HOIP} 14.267 Slate of New Hampshirs Departmant of Health end Human Services £3-2019-8HHS-01-Coortd 130.822
Cortinuum of Cara Program (HOIP} 14.267 State of Naw Hampshire Department of Heelh and Huran Services NONE 38,165
Continuum of Care Program {(HOIP) 14.267 State of New Hampshira Depertmant of Healih and Hiaman Services WO 0T L0080 14,157
FOTAL 253,029
Totat .S Dapartrant of Housing and Urban Developmant $  37445n



IRLCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC,

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR YHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

GRANTOR'S
FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH IDENTIFYING FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTORIPROGRAM TITLE ALN GRANTOR'S NAME NUMBER EXPENDITURES
WIAWWIOA CLUSTER
WIAAWIOA Adult Program 17.258 Southem New Hampshire Services, inc. 2016-0004 3 10,650
Toxal 1).5. Depanment of tabor CLUSTER TOTAL H 10,650
.8, D M
Coronaving Reflsf Fund 21.019 - Vokntser NH| 11 24,301
Coronavirus Resief Fund 21.019 Stata of NH Govemnor's Offce of Emerpency Reliel and Recovary
Housing Stabiization Fund 1,405,678
Coronavirus Retisf Fund 21,019 State of NH Govermor's Office of Emargency Relel and Recovery
Shefter Modification Prograrn 8.553
Corsaavirus Resel Fund 21.018 State of NH Governor's Office of Emargency Retef and Recovery
COVID - 19 Long Term Care Stabilization Program i} 38,190
= TOTAL 1,480,920
Emerpency Rontol Assistance Prograrmn 21023 NH Housing Finance Authority _ 2B)9018
Total U.S. Department of Ihe Treasury - $ 4119938
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 5 16,527,655
NON-FEDERAL
New Hampshire Public Utiities Company - Elecincal Assistance Program BMCAP

N

s 291,218

The eccompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (ihe Schadue) includes the faderst award activity of Tri-County Commmv Aciion Program, Inc. under programs of the fasceral govermnmenlt lar the year ended Junp 30, 2021, The information in Ihis
Scheduls Is praseniad in accondance with the requiremans of This 2 U.S.Code of Fedaral Regutations Part 200, Uniform Admini Rogus

NOTE B.- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES

Expandiiures reported on the Schedle are repoded on Ihe accrual besis of accounting. Such expendkures are recognized ofiowing (he cost principies contsined in Unilorm Guidance, wherein ceriain lypes of expandilires ace not allowable of are Imitad ss to
reimbursamant, Negative amounts shown on the Schedule ipresent adjustments o credits made in the normal coursa of businass 10 amounts reporiad as 2xpandittres in prior years.

NQTE C - INDIRECT RATE '
Tr-Caunty Community Action Program Inc. has elscisd to nol use tha 10-parcent de minimis indiract cost rato stiowod under the Uiniiorm Guidance.

s, Cost Principles, and Audt Requirerments for Federal Awsrds {Unitorm Gmm; Bacause \he Schadule
prasants only B selacted portion of the cperations of To-County Community Action Program, Inc., it is not intended o and does nol present (e financial position, changes in nel assets, or cash Bows of the Organization.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial
position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes fo the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated November 19, 2021,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we consndered Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.’s internal coritrol.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contro!
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters : '

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Pregram Inc.’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization’s internal controf or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

S e MDoranet 8 lectrth

November 19, 2021
North Conway, New Hampshire
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IRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPGRT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, -Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program .

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2021. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility -

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assuranceé about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance. : '
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Controi over Compliance

Management of Tri-County -Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in .the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion ‘on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normatl course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type.of comptiance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider o be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal controt over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requiremenis of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

5{&0"4, ﬂZLDM 4 lotndd

November 18, 2021
North Conway, New Hampshire
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IRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, ING.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

1. The auditors' report expressés an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP — ALN 93.568

U.S. Dept. of the Treasury, Coronavirus Relief Fund — ALN 21.019

U.S. Dept. of the Treasury, ERAP — ALN 21.023

UU.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development, CoC — ALN 14.267

Nevv;f Hampshire Public Utilities Company, Electrical Assistance Program (non-Federal)
8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.
9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-fisk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT _
None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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